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February 21, 2001

Peter G. Sheridan, Esq.
Graham, Curtin & Sheridan
50 West State Street
Trenton, New Jersey 08608

Advisory Opinion No. 01-2001

Dear Mr. Sheridan:

Your request for an advisory opinion, submitted on behalf of DiFrancesco for Governor,
Inc. (hereafter, “DFG”), has been considered by the Commission, and the Commission has
directed me to issue this response.

Submitted Facts

You write that the DFG is the gubernatorial campaign committee of Senate President
Donald DiFrancesco, and that the committee will seek public funding in the 2001 gubernatorial
primary election pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-29, et seq.  Further, DFG has asked Lewis
Eisenberg to serve as its chair in a part-time, voluntary capacity, and in that capacity Mr.
Eisenberg will be asked to conduct fundraising for DFG but will not have any other duties or
responsibilities.  According to your request, the candidate, Senate President DiFrancesco, along
with the campaign staff, will be making all campaign expenditure decisions and the persons
listed as “staff” provided by the DFG do not include Mr. Eisenberg’s name. You describe Mr.
Eisenberg as a very successful Wall Street entrepreneur, who is chair of an investment firm,
Granite Investment, which position is his full-time occupation.  He also serves as chair of the
Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, and has recently served on President George W.
Bush’s transition team.

The Commission records reflect that on January 5, 2001, Senate President (and currently
Acting Governor) DiFrancesco filed with the Commission a Form D-1 designating DFG as his
200l gubernatorial primary election candidate committee.

According to your request letter, Mr. Eisenberg was associated with an organization
named the Republican Leadership Council (hereafter, “RLC”) until Mr. Eisenberg resigned from
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that body last year. You write: “Eisenberg wishes to resume some role at the RLC, and
simultaneously raise money for the DFG.”  You also write: “In addition, Eisenberg has notified
RLC that he would like to resume his participation in RLC, but he has specifically recused
himself from all activities concerning New Jersey, if any, for the year 2001.”

Attached to this request as an exhibit is a copy of what appears to be a letter over the
apparent signature of Lewis M. Eisenberg, dated January 18, 2001, addressed to Mr. Mark
Miller, Republican Leadership Council, in Washington, D.C.   The letter advises the recipient
that Mr. Eisenberg has taken a position as Finance Chair of Senator DiFrancesco’s gubernatorial
campaign in New Jersey, and therefore requests that should the RLC consider or in fact spend
funds on “…issue ads or other expenditures regarding the upcoming campaign in New Jersey,
you should not discuss those plans or expenditures with me.  Likewise, I will not be initiating
any conversations with you regarding any activities of the DiFrancesco campaign or suggestions
for spending RLC funds in New Jersey.”

At the Commission public meeting conducted on this date, you have amplified on that
letter and represented to the Commission that Mr. Eisenberg will remove himself from all
contribution or spending decisions of the RLC “…that have anything to do with New Jersey
candidates.”

You write that the RLC is “…a political committee which supports moderate republican
candidates throughout the United States.” You also have attached as an exhibit to this request a
printout dated January 25, 2001, from the RLC website, which printout includes information and
texts of recent television advertising apparently purchased by the RLC concerning the
Republican political party and candidates of that party for several federal offices in New Jersey
and other states.  None of the advertisements refers to candidates for State offices in New Jersey
under the jurisdiction of this Commission.

You write that Mr. Eisenberg has no knowledge that the RLC may or may not expend
funds in New Jersey elections this year.

The Commission notes that its records show that an organization under the name
‘Republican Leadership Council-State” filed on April 15, 1999, a Certification of Finalization
(Form CPC-F) indicating cessation of that entity as a continuing political committee (hereafter,
“CPC”) in this State.  The indicated chair at that time was Lewis M. Eisenberg, and Mark L.
Miller was listed as Treasurer.  Presumably, these are the same individuals that are described in
this request.   Commission records do not indicate any further reports filed by this CPC since its
cessation as a CPC in this State.

Question Presented

As the Commission perceives the question presented by this request, it is: Do the dual
roles of Mr. Eisenberg, as chair of DFG and as a participant in the RLC, establish per se
campaign coordination between DFG and the RLC under the provisions of  N.J.A.C. 19:25-
16.30?
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Commission Response

The question of “coordination” between a publicly financed gubernatorial candidate
committee and an organization that may be undertaking an expenditure to make a public
communication is a question of conduct, not appearance.

Under N.J.A.C. 19:25-16.30, Coordinated expenditures, an entity that expends funds to
make a communication prior to a gubernatorial primary election is deemed to have undertaken
that expenditure in coordination with a gubernatorial candidate if the following two conditions
exist:

1. The communication makes a reference to the gubernatorial candidate in an audio,
visual, printed, or electronic format which reference names, depicts, pictures,
characterizes, represents, dramatizes, or in any written, spoken, visual or electronic
manner represents a gubernatorial candidate or opponent; and

2. The gubernatorial candidate or his or her campaign committee has consented to,
authorized, or exercised control over the production or circulation of the
communication.

It is the opinion of the Commission that under the facts submitted the dual role of Mr.
Eisenberg, as chair of DFG and as a participant in the RLC, do not establish coordination
pursuant to the provisions of  N.J.A.C. 19:25-16.30 (quoted above).  The fact record for this
request is that Mr. Eisenberg will avoid discussion of, and abstain from exercising any decision-
making control or influence over, any expenditure made by the RLC for any communication that
touches upon Senator DiFrancesco’s gubernatorial 2001 primary election candidacy.   Under the
submitted facts as the Commission understands them,  Mr. Eisenberg will not serve the
gubernatorial candidate or his campaign committee as a vehicle for consenting to, authorizing, or
exercising control over the production or circulation of such a communication undertaken by the
RLC.  Accordingly, the conditions of N.J.A.C. 19:25-16.30 for a coordinated expenditure
between the DFG and RLC are not met.

In offering this advisory opinion, the Commission observes that its effect is limited to the
submitted facts of this request.  Therefore, nothing contained in this opinion is intended to
address any conduct by Mr. Eisenberg that does not entirely conform to that described in the
submitted facts, and nothing contained in the opinion is intended to address any conduct by any
other person  that may be associated with RLC or DFG.

The Commission notes that this request cites the expenditure regulation (N.J.A.C.  19:25-
15.29) that is pertinent to a gubernatorial general (rather than primary) election, see page 2, item
3, and page 4, item 5, of the request.  However, because the date of this request precedes the
primary election scheduled for June 5, 2001, the effect of this opinion is intended by the
Commission to be applicable to the 2001 gubernatorial primary election.  Also, should Senator
DiFrancesco be a candidate in the 2001 gubernatorial general election and the same submitted
facts are operable in that election, this opinion is intended to be effective for the 2001
gubernatorial general election also.

You have asked specifically: “Does the Commission adopt the standard for coordination
as set forth in FEC v. Christian Coalition, 52 F. Supp. 2d 44 (DCC 1999).”   The holding in that
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case concerns federal statutes and regulations of the Federal Election Commission, and the facts
and legal issues of that opinion do not appear to the Commission to be identical to those raised in
this inquiry.  Accordingly, this advisory opinion should not be construed to express any opinion
concerning that holding.

Thank you for your inquiry, and your interest in the work of the Commission.

Very truly yours,

GREGORY E. NAGY
Legal Director
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